
THE EMERGENCY excavations at Staines on the 
first Roman Settlement to be recorded there have 
been brought to a successful conclusion1. The site, 
at 69-71 High Street (TB 037716), was discover& in 
November 1969 by the author whilst undertaking 
field work in the Staines area on behalf of the Lon- 
don Museum. First evidence of Roman occupation 
of the area was found by site bricklayer Steven Kerr, 
who discovered pottery and bones during the re- 
development work on the site. 

As a result of this discovery, hurried arrange- 
ments were made with the site owners, Barclays 
Bank, and the contractors, Messrs. Gee & Company, 
Hanworth, for a constant watch to be kept on all 
stages of their work and, where possible, to investi- 
gate certain features by controlled excavation. 

Staines has for long been the reputcd site of 
Pontes, a Roman posting station, situated, according 
to the Itinerarium Provinciarum Antonini Augusti, 
midway between London and Silchester2. The name 
Pontes indicates 'the bridges' and clearly suggests a 
river crossing. 

The town of of Staines lies on the Thames at the 
south-west extremity of the county of Middlesex, the 
river separating it from Surrey. On its northern side 
a branch of the River Colne, known as the Shire 
Ditch, separates it from Buckinghamshire. The Shire 
Ditch converges with the Thames just below the 
present Staines Bridge3. 

Staines lies between 25-75 feet above sea level and 
is situated on deposits of Flood Plain Gravel over- 
lying London Clay. The gravel stretches over to the 
Surrey side of the Thames, and Staines is the only 
place west of London where it is possible to cross the 
River Thames without leaving gravel for alluvial 
soils either before or after leaving the Thames, a 
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factor which probably accounts for the siting of the 
towns medieval and later bridges and possibly a 
crossing point for the Romans. 

The site lies 21 miles west of the Roman City of 
London and 27 miles from the Roman town of Sil- 
chester. The projected alignment of the Roman road, 
(Route 4a) between these two points crosses the 
front portion of the site. 

William Stukely, writing in 1723 about the course 
of the London to Silchester Roman Road wrote, 'I 
rode the broken part between Acton and Turnham 
green; it is still a narrow strait way, keeping its 
original direction but full of dangerous sloughs, bs 
ing a clayey soil and never repaired it butts upon 
Stanes bridge', then according to him it passes for- 
ward in a straight line onto the Surrey side of the 
Thames. He also records that Staines 'was fenced 
round with a ditch'. Stukeley's accompanying illus- 
tration shows a profile of 'Stanes' and the course of 
the Roman Road on both sides of the bridge4. 

In 1835, officers of the Royal Military College, 
Sandhurst, carried out a survey d the Roman Road 
from Silchester to Staines, their alignments agree 
with those of Stukeley5. 

Very little material has been recorded from the 
Staines area, the most significant exceptions include; 
the discovery of Roman polttery of 1st century date 
overlying thc Neolithic deposits of the Causcwaped 
Camp at Ueoveney one mile north-west of Staines6; 
the necks of two wine vessels of late 1st-early 2nd 
century type, recovered in 1957 from 32 High 
Street7; finds from the Thames include a lance headX 
and an urn of grey ware of 2nd-3rd century data'). 

Literary references to finds include, pottery, coins 
and a sword having been found in or near the Angel 
Hotel, 26 High Street, in 1871 and of a Roman Bath 
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